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a corporation.

)
In the Matter of )

) Docket No. 9312
NORTH TEXAS SPECIALTY )
PHYSICIANS, )

)

)

)

NON-PARTY UNITED HEALTHCARE OF TEXAS, INC.’S MOTION TO

QUASH OR LIMIT THE SUBPOENAS SERVED BY NORTH TEXAS

SPECIALTY PHYSICIANS

Pursuant to Rule 3.34 of the Federal Trade Commission’s Rules of
Practice for Adjudicative Proceedings (“Rules of Practice”) 16 C.F.R. § 3.34(c), non-
party United HealthCare of Texas, Inc. (“United”) respectfully moves to quash or limit
certain specifications in the subpoena duces tecum dated December 18, 2003 (Exhibit 1)
and the subpoena ad testificandum dated January 12, 2004 (Exhibit 2) issued on behalf of
North Texas Specialty Physicians (“NTSP”). Counsel for United and NTSP have
conferred, in accordance with Rule 3.22(f) of the Rules of Practice, 16 C.F.R. § 3.22(f),
and have been unable to resolve all of the issues raised in the subpoena. See Declaration
of Helene D. Jaffe (Jan. 23, 2004) (hereinafter “Jaffe Decl.”) at §12 (Exhibit 3).

INTRODUCTION

On September 16, 2003, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) filed a
complaint against NTSP, an independent physician association (“IPA”) operating in the
Fort Worth area. The crux of the complaint is that “NTSP, acting as a combination of

competing physicians, and in combination with physicians and other physician
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organizations, has restrained competition among its participating physicians” in violation
of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. §45. In the Matter of
North Texas Specialty Physicians, No. 9312 (hereinafter the “FTC Complaint”), at §12.
In late December, NTSP served United, a non-party in this action, with a subpoena duces
tecum (“Subpoena”) via certified mail. The Subpoena requested that United produce
broad categories of documents, including categories which were unrelated to the
allegations in the FTC Complaint, by January 2, 2004 -- after tile end-of-year holidays
and on a day when many offices and courts were closed. NTSP later agreed that United
could respond on a rolling basis beginning on January 9, 2004. Jaffe Decl. at 14,5. To
date, United already has produced thousands of pages of documents and continues to
produce broad categories of documents pursuant to its agreement with counsel for NTSP.
Id. at 8. On January 12, 2004, NTSP also served United with a subpoena ad
testificandum (“Deposition Notice™) pursuant to Rule 3.33(c). The topics of examination
listed on the Deposition Notice closely track the document requests made in the
Subpoena. Although United and NTSP have worked together to limit the scope of both
the Subpoena and Deposition Notice, on January 21, 2004, the parties reached an
impasse. See Jaffe Decl. at §§7,12.

As detailed more fully below, not only are the documents and testimony
demanded totally irrelevant to the current investigation, but production of the documents
would be extremely burdensome given the technology required and the sensitivity of the
information that must be reviewed. For example, the data requested in Specification Nos.
2 and 3 was produced in a completely unrelated investigation of United’s claims practices

pursuant to a Written Notice of Intent to Inspect, Examine and Copy Corporate
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Documents (the “Written Notice™) issued by the Texas Attorney General. No data
produced in response to this Written Notice in any way relates to United’s reimbursement
policies, let alone the reimbursement policies of providers -- the actual subject of the
current proceedings. Moreover, United only produced the data to the Texas Attorney
General after 1t was assured that the data would receive the utmost confidentiality
protection under the law. Thus, it did not review or redact the data for Protected Health
Information (“PHI”) as defined by Health Insurance Portability- and Accountability Act of
1996 (“HIPAA”) Privacy and Security Rules. Since virtually all of the classes of data
produced in response to the Written Notice contain PHI, United would have to request
that the Protective Order in place in this case be specifically amended to address the
treatment of PHI information. As a result, United may have to undertake an extensive
review and redaction of the data which would place a tremendous burden on its human
and technological resources. This burden significantly outweighs any potential benefit
that NTSP would receive from the data, in light of its lack of relevance to this
proceeding.
ARGUMENT

Under FTC Rules of Practice a subpoena duces tecum must be
“reasonably expected to yield information relevant to the allegations of the complaint, to
the proposed relief, and to the defenses of any respondent.” 16 C.F.R. §§ 3.34(b), 3.31
(b)(1). An Administrative Law Judge in an FTC proceeding is given broad discretionary
powers to limit or quash a subpoena where appropriate. Thus, he can quash or limit any
subpoena that is unduly burdensome or would require the disclosure of privileged or

confidential proprietary information. 16 C.F.R. §3.31(c)(1)(iii) (use of subpoena and
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other discovery methods “shall be limited by the Administrative Law Judge” where the -
“burden and expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit”); 16 C.F.R.
§3.31(c)(2) (authorizing Administrative Law Judge to “enter a protective order denying
or limiting discovery to preserve” a privilege). Furthermore, an Administrative Law
Judge can modify a subpoena or otherwise limit the scope of permissible discovery so as
to “deny discovery or make any order which justice requires to protect a party or other
person from annoyance, embarrassment, oppression, or undue Eurden or expense.” 16
C.F.R. §3.31(d)(1). Because, as outlined in more detail below, both NTSP’s Subpoena
and Deposition Notice request information that would be irrelevant to the adjudication,
burdensome to produce, and privileged, it must be quashed or limited.

L SPECIFIC OBJECTIONS TO NTSP’S REQUESTS

A, The Subpoena Should Be Limited To Exclude Specification Nos. 2 and

Specification Nos. 2 and 3 of NTSP’s Subpoena ask for the same data
requested by the Attorney General of the State of Texas in an unrelated, confidential

litigation:

All documents previously produced or otherwise sent to the Office of
the Attorney General of the State of Texas concerning business
relationships with healthcare providers in the State of Texas, including
specifically but without limitation the documents provided in response
to the Written Notice of Intent to Inspect, Examine and Copy
Corporate Documents served in or about March 2002 (a sample of
such Written Notice is attached hereto as Appendix A). [At your
option, check registers as described in Class 6 of Exhibit C need not be
produced].

Documents for the time period January 1, 2000 to June 30, 2002
described in Exhibits A through C of the above-referenced Written
Notice of Intent to Inspect, Examine and Copy Corporate documents
to the extent such documents are not produced in response to Request
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No. 2 above. [At your option, check registers as described in Class 6
of Exhibit C need not be produced]. Such documents should be
provided in electronic form only.

This data was only given to the Texas Attorney General after United had received
repeated assurances that it its confidentiality would be protected under Texas law and had
negotiated a detailed protective order governing its submission. Because United was led
to believe that the data would be adequately protected by the state, it was never reviewed
for confidentiality, redacted, or otherwise treated to comply wifh HIPAA requirements.
To force United to do so now would require this Court to place an untenable burden on a
non-party. The burden on United is all the more striking when compared with the
irrelevancy of the data to the current proceedings. Indeed, none of the data submitted to
the Texas Attorney General in response to the Written Notice relates in anyway to the
alleged price fixing by NTSP or to United’s negotiations with the IPA. Thus, United
objects to Specification Nos. 2 and 3 in their entirety.

Although NTSP agreed to limit these Specifications and accept only the
data requested in the Texas Attorney General’s Written Notice for Collin, Dallas, Den_ton,
Ellis, Grayson, Henderson, Hood, Hunt, Johnson, Kaufman, Parker, Rockwall, and
Tarrant Counties, it remained steadfast in its position that the data should be produced
because it was not burdensome for United to do so. Jaffe Decl. at §75,10,11. This
argument is fundamentally flawed, however, because even if the request was not
tremendously burdensome when compared to the relevance of the data sought in the
subpoena -- which it is -- the law requires that the request in and of itself be relevant,
which the Specifications are not. As the FTC’s own operating manual notes, there are

three tests for every subpoena duces tecum: “is it definite, is it relevant, and is it
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reasonable.” See FTC Operating Manual Ch. 13.6.4.7.3. Clearly, passing one or two of
the tests is not enough -- the subpoena must pass all three. NTSP’s does not.

1. Compliance would result in the production of vast quantities of
irrelevant and sensitive information.

In March 2002, the Texas Attorney General issued a Written Notice which
authorized and directed its Consumer Protection Division to investigate United for
possible violations of Section 17.46(a) of the State’s Deceptive Trade Practices Act,
Section 3 of the State’s Unfair Competition and Unfair Practices Act, and Article 21.21
of the Texas Insurance Code. See Exhibit 1, Appendix A. The six categories of data
requested in Written Notice related to member eligibility, authorizations/referrals,
disposition of claims or encounters, monthly capitation payments, claims adjudication,
and check registers.! See Exhibit 1, Appendix A at Exhibit C. The data ultimately
produced by United in response to the Written Notice was the result of a lengthy series of
discussions with the Texas Attorney General in response to a detailed Written Notice. It
was produced in a format that complied with the Attorney General’s customized
requirements and included information that related not only to provider claims, but also
member claims and claims subject to Administrative Service Only (“ASO”) agreements.
See Declaration of Jennifer Cook (January 23, 2004) (hereinafter “Cook Decl.”) at §3
(Exhibit 4). None of that information is relevant to the antitrust price fixing allegations
contained in the FTC’s Complaint. Id. Accordingly, it defies reason for NTSP to suggest

that this information, collected for a limited purpose and containing such a broad range of

! NTSP only requested the data for five of the six categories, check registers could be
excluded at United’s option. Exhibit 1, Specification 2 and 3.
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data, would be relevant to an action brought by the FTC against an IPA for price fixing
and other antitrust violations.

Moreover, while NTSP may claim that it is seeking to use this information
to establish relevant market and market behavior which it could use to combat the
allegations brought against it by the FTC, it is extraordinarily difficult to see how such
data could accomplish those objectives, given that provider location and reimbursement
policies were not captured by the data. Cook Decl. at §93,5. Iﬁdeed, whole categories of
the Attorney General’s request hardly touch on providers at all. Thus, for example, it is
impossible to see how data on member eligibility would help in the defense of price
fixing allegations by an IPA.

2. United’s response to Written Notice contained confidential
information which is not adequately protected by the Protective Order in this case.

Forcing United to produce the documents given to the Texas Attorney
General would be tantamount to penalizing it for cooperating with a government
investigation, thus implicating important public policy concerns. NTSP’s subpoena
forces United to disclose confidential and senéitive information that is protected under
Texas law and a Protective Order agreed to by the Office of the Attorney General. See
Declaration of Luis G. Zambrano (Jan. 23, 2004) (hereinafter “Zambrano Decl.”)
(Exhibit 5) at §4. Indeed, the Texas Attorney General issued the Written Notice pursuant
to the Texas Miscellaneous Cprporation Laws Act, Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. Art. 1302-
5.04 which prohibits the Attorney General from making the information public. By
requesting the documents from United rather then the Texas Attorney General, NTSP is

trying to circumvent the protections afforded to United’s production.
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United agreed to produce data in response to the Written Notice because it
was assured that the data, and the sensitive information contained therein, would be
protected under Texas law and the terms of the Texas Protective Order. United did not
anticipate, however, that when it complied with the Texas Attorney General’s request, a
private paﬁy, in an unrelated action, would attempt to bypass the Texas Protective Order
and use United’s cooperation as a vehicle for unwarranted discovery of proprietary
information. United should not, as a third party, be forced to disclose data and lose the
protections it agreed to in the Texas Protective Order in an action in which it is not even a
party. Nor should United be forced to potentially waive any privileges that might apply
to the data without the protections of the Texas Protective Order.

The ramifications of responding to NTSP’s subpoena extend well beyond
the disclosure of United’s confidential trade secret information, because the subpoena
would require United to produce sensitive health information related to Texas patients.
United’s expectation that the documents it produced to the Texas Attorney General would
be kept confidential is especially important given that the patient information disclosed to
the Texas Attorney General is protected by the HIPAA as well as provisions of the Texas
Insurance Code. HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules impose certain requirements on
United relating to the disclosure of PHI even in the context of judicial and administrative
proceedings. 45 C.F.R. §163.512(¢). The Texas Protective Order ensured theb security of
this sensitive patient information. Accordingly, United did not have to take the additional
extraordinary steps of redacting the protected information from the data consistent with
HIPAA. See Zambrano Decl. at §]6-10. In contrast, the current Protective Order in this

action does not track these requirements. Disclosing such data, without the benefits of
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the Texas Protective Order, would necessarily require that United breach the safeguards
afforded to patients’ sensitive health information.

3. Given the steps necessary to compile and review the data
compliance would be overly burdensome.

To comply with the subpoena and HIPAA rules United would also héve to
undertake a tremendous effort to remove PHI from the data, as well as review the data for
potential privileged information. Reviewing this data would be a nearly insurmountable
burden, particularly in light of the lack of relevance of the data in this unrelated action.
NTSP responds that compliance with its request would not be overly burdensome
because the data requested was limited to a small number of counties and the data has
already been gathered. This is incorrect for a number of reasons discussed below.

The data United produced to the Texas Attorney General did not include
provider location, as specified in the Written Notice and subsequent negotiations. Cook
Decl. at95. Thus, to limit the request to the thirteen counties for which NTSP seeks
information would involve an extensive programming effort. United employees would
have to write programs to extract data based on provider zip codes, run the programs, and
review it to ensure that the results were accurate. Id. Not only is it estimated that such an

effort would take weeks to produce, but it would divert United’s computers from normal

? Furthermore, Texas Insurance Code §843.007 also limits the disclosure of information
relating to the diagnosis, treatment, or health of a health plan’s enrollees or applicants.
Similarly, Texas Insurance Code §843.102 provides that an enrollee’s records are
confidential and privileged and not subject to public information law or to subpoena.
These sections of the Insurance Code place an affirmative obligation on United to
maintain the confidentiality of information provided by its enrollees. The current
Protective Order does not take these provisions into account.
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business operations. In short, such an undertaking would disrupt and hinder United’s
normal course of operations. Id.

Moreover, NTSP’s arguments that it was only requesting the Texas
Attorney General data because it would be easy to produce is undercut by the fact that in
Specification No. 3, it originally requested documents beyond the time period of the
Written Notice. Thus, while the Written Notice covered documents from January 1, 2001
and March 28, 2002 (and in certain cases only up to February 2602), the NTSP’s
subpoena asks for documents through June 30, 2002. Exhibit 1, Specification No. 3.
Additionally, United’s did not supply documents for the entire time period specified in
the Written Notice. Cook Decl. at 4. Not only would it take months to collect data for a
different time period, but since United’s contract was not effective until 2002 it is even
more difficult to see how the data is relevant.

The presence of PHI information in the data also makes this request
especially burdensome. Indeed, if United is forced to produce this data it will have to
review and potentially redact all of this information, given statutory privacy concems.
Zambrano Decl. at §J4-12. This will be a time consuming and expensive effort. United
should not, as a third party, be forced to take such steps when the data being sought is not
relevant to the subject matter in this action.

In short, the time and effort United would have to expend to cull, review,
and if possible redact, the data NTSP requests threatens to interrupt its business
operations. Cook Decl. at §]5-7. The benefit to NTSP of obtaining irrelevant data does
not outweigh this burden. Therefore, United requests that the Court quash these

Specifications in their entirety.
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B. The Subpoena Should be Limited to the Extent Specification No. 7
Asks for Irrelevant, Burdensome, and Duplicative Information.

Specification No. 7 of NTSP’s Subpoena asks for “all documents
concerning or relating to comparisons of the cost of physician services, hospital care,
pharmacy cost, or cost of health insurance in the State of Texas.” Exhibit 1. United
objects to this request to the extent that it relates to information that is irrelevant to the
allegations in the FTC Complaint, overbroad, and unduly burdensome. To begin, it is
difficult to define the exact scope of NTSP’s request, even after conversations with
counsel for NTSP. For example, it is unclear what costs NTSP is referring to -- the costs
born by United or those born by consumers. It is also unclear what the exact meaning of
the words “concerning or relating to comparisons” is. Therefore, it is impossible to
determine whether documents which outline formulas used to run the comparisons would
be responsive in the sense that they concern or relate to the comparisons. If they do,
complying with this request would require an enormous amount of work to identify,
produce, and review these documents, thereby tying up United’s staff and slowing down
its regular business operations.

In addition, documents concerning or relating to comparisons of pharmacy
or health insurance costs are not related to the current proceedings which stem from
claims related to price fixing and concerted refusals to deal on the part of physician
providers. Therefore this request is beyond the proper scope of a subpoena. NTSP has
tried to argue that the materials it requests are relevant because they could be used to
show efficiencies. However this argument is a non-starter. For example, decreases in

hospital costs could be purposely offset by higher fees for services just as easily as they
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could be the result of increased efficiencies. The fact that the data can be interpreted in a
myriad of ways demonstrates its lack of relevancy. Finally, to the extent that the request
asks for comparisons of physician costs it is duplicative of information produced in
response to Specification 5. Thus, United asks that this request be quashed in its entirety
or at least limited to the documents comparing physician costs encompassed by
Specification 5.

C. The Deposition Notice Should Be Limited to the Same Extent as the
Subpoena.

NTSP has also requested deposition testimony related to the document
requests made in its Subpoena. United has designated two corporate representatives, Mr.
Thomas Quirk and Dr. David Ellis, to speak on these topics. However, like the Subpoena
requests, many of the Deposition Notice requests ask for information that is irrelevant.
Thus, to the extent United, NTSP, and the Court limit the fequests made in the Subpoena,
United asks that the Court also limit the topics of examination in the Deposition Notice.
For example, NTSP should not be allowed to question either deponent about the data
submitted to the Texas Attorney General. Nor should it be able to ask questions related
to comparisons of pharmacy, hospital care, or health insurance costs or about
comparisons and rates established for the entire state of Texas.

II. GENERAL OBJECTIONS TO NTSP’S REQUESTS

United also asserts a number of objections to NTSP’s Definitions and
Instructions in the Subpoena and Deposition Notice.
First, United requests that this Court limit the requests to United

HealthCare of Texas, Inc. United should not have to respond to this request on behalf of
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its “parents, subsidiaries, affiliates” or its “predecessors or successors.” Exhibit 1,
Exhibit 2. United’s affiliates are located across the country and its parent company is
located in Minnesota. Moreover, United was in existence in Texas during the time frame
cited in NTSP’s Subpoena and Deposition Notice; thus there is no reason to refer to its
“predecessors or successors.”

Second, United objects to NTSP’s requirement that it produce a detailed
Privilege Log containing information on all documents withheid from the production on
that basis, because this is a very heavy burden to place on a non-party who is trying to
comply with a request at an expedited pace. F urther, United requests that the Court
provide it with a forty-five (45)‘ day period to create and submit a log that adequately
describes the materials withheld.

III. NTSP SHOULD BEAR THE COSTS OF UNITED’S RESPONSE TO THE
SUBPOENA

Even if this Court does limit the scope of the Subpoena to the extent
requested, the burden on United to respond is still substantial. The Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure allow a non-party to recover expenses when a subpoena imposes expenses on
that party. Fed. R. Civ. P. 45. Therefore, United asks that the Court require that NTSP

reimburse United for all the costs, expenses, and fees it incurs.
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CONCLUSION
For the foregoing reasons, United respectfully requests an Order in the
attached form, quashing or limiting NTSP’s Subpoena and Deposition Notice.

Dated: Januaryz$ 2004 Respectfully submltted

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
1501 K Street, NW

Suite 100

Washington DC 20005-1411
Telephone: (202) 682-7000
Facsimile: (202) 857-0940

Helene D. Jaffe, Esq.

WEIL, GOTSHAL & MANGES LLP
767 Fifth Avenue

New York, New York 10153-0119
Telephone: (212) 310-8000
Facsimile: (212) 310-8007

Counsel for Non-Party Movant
United HealthCare of Texas, Inc.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, George J. Hazel, hereby certify that the foregoing document has been
served on January 23, 2004 by hand — delivery on the following:

Honorable D. Michael Chappell
Administrative Law Judge
Federal Trade Commission
Room H-104

600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20580

Donald S. Clark

Secretary

Federal Trade Commission
600 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20580

and by certified overnight mail and facsimile on the following:

Michael Bloom

Senior Counsel to the Northeast Region
Federal Trade Commission

One Bowling Green, Suite 318

New York, NY 10004

Gregory S.C. Huffman

Gregory D. Binns

Thompson & Knight, LLP

1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 3300

Dallas, TX 75201 ,
L Z
/ ~

Georgp/.f./ Hazel
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U

UnitedHealth Group

MNOO8-T202
9900 Bren Road East
Minnetonka MN 55343

FAX COVER SHEET

This facsimile transmission contains confidential information intended for the parties
identified below. If you have received this transmission In orror, please immaediately notify
me by telephone and either destroy or return the original message to me at the address
listed above. Distribution, reproduction or any other use of this transmission by any party
other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited.

Date: December 22, 2003
12:19 PM

To: Greg Coleman

Fax Number: 512 527 0798

Number of Pages: 62

(including cover sheet)

From: Jackie Albright

Phone Number: 952 936 1905

Fax Number; 962 936 1745

Re:

Message:

If you do not receive all pages or there are pages which cannot be read, please call Matt Johnson at
052.936-7334.

12/22/03 MON 13:19 [TX/RX NO 6518]
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@
CT System
Service of Process Transmittal Form
Dallas, Texas
12/18/2003
Via Federal Express (2nd Day)

TO: Jaquelyn E Albright MNOOB-T202
UnitedHealth Group Incorporated (1115041 90770700600)
MNOO8-T202
UnitedHealth Group Center
9900 Bren Road East
Minnetonka, MN 55343

Phane: (952) 936-1905 ax:
FAX: (852) 936-1745

RE: PROCESS SERVED IN TEXAS

FOR UNITED HEALTHCARE OF TEXAS, INC. Domestic State: Tx
True Name : Unked HasithGare of Texes. Inc,” (543006723770700600)

ENCLOSED ARE COPIES OF LEGAL PROCESS RECEIVED BY THE STATUTQRY AGENT OF THE ABOVE COMPANY AS FOLLOWS:

1. TITLE OF ACTION: To: Untied Heatlheare of Texas, Inc. Reo: North Taxas Spacialty Physicians
2. DOCUMENTIS) SERVED: Cover Letter dated: Dec 1B, 2003, Subpoena, Attachments, Appendix A
3, COURT: None Shown

Case Number 8312

4. NATURE OF ACTION: Subpoena sesking any and all records or items peartaining to documents sent to tho Federal
Trade Commission concerning your business relationships with heatlhcare providers in the
Stata of Texas

5. ON WHOM PROCESS WAS SERVED: CT Corporation System, Dallas, Texas
6. DATE AND HOUR OF SERVICE: By Certified mail on 12/19/2003 with Postmarked Date 12/18/2003
_7. AFPEARANCE OR ANSWER DUE: Jan 2, 2004
8. ATTORNEY(B): Thompson & Knight LLP
1700 Pacific Ave
Suite 3300

Dallas, Tx 75201

SIGNED CT Corporation System

PER Angela L. Kraft - Mays /BC
ADDRESS 350 North St. Paul Street
Dallas, TX 75201
SOP WS 0005937735

Information contained on this wranamittal form is recorded for C T Carporation Systom®s racerd kesping purposes enly and to parmit quick reference
T0r e raciplent. This Information does not conotiuts o lagol GOINION 03 10 TNE NBLUNG OF BETION, Tho amouNnt OF dameges, the snawaer dete, ar ny
information that can be obtainod from the documants thamaaives. The rocipient la ponsiblo for intarpreting the o ond for taking the
appropriare action.

12/22/03 MON 13:18 [TX/RX NO 6518]
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THOMPSON & KNIGHT Lp

AUSTIN
DALLAS

ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS FORT WORTH

HOUSTON

1700 PACIFIC AVENUE = SUITE 3300 —

DALLAS, TEXAS 75201-4593 ALGIERS

DIRECT DIAL: 214.969.1372 (214) 969-1700 MONTERREY
DIRECT Fax: 214.999.1662 FAX (214) 868.1781 PARIS
E-Man.: Gregory.Bmna@tklaw.com www tkiaw.com RIO DE JANEIRO

December 18, 2003

V1A CERTIFIED MAIL NO. 7003 1680 0004 2583 8960

United Healthcare of Texas, Inc.

c/o C'T Corporation System, Registered Agent
350 N. St. Paul Srreet

Dallas, TX 75201

Re:  North Texas Specialry Physicians, Docket No. 9312
To Whom it May Concern:

Enclosed please find a subpoena duces tecum for the above-captioned case, requiring you
to submit documents responsive to the attached specifications, on or before January 2, 2004.
These documents should be sent to:

Gregory S. C. Huffman
Thompson & Knight, LLP

1700 Pacific Avenue, Suire 3300
Dallas, TX 75201

Also enclosed is a copy of the Protective Order Governing Discovery Material
(“Protective Order”). The Prorective Order governs the documents submitted by parties and
third parties to the litigation and lays our the submitrers’ rights and protections. Your submission
should conform to the procedures specified in the Protective Order.

1 am happy to answer any questions you have regarding the specifications of the subpoena
duces tecum or the Protective Order. I can be reached at the telephone number above.

GDB/dep

Enclosure

007155 000034 DALLAS 1680758.1

12/22/03 MON 13:19 [TX/RX NO 6518]
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SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM
Issued Pursuant to Rule 3.34(b), 16 C.F.R. § 3.34(b)(1997)

Dnited Realthcare of Texas, Inc.

c/o C T Corporation System,
Registered Agent

350 R. St. Paul Street

pallas, TX 75201

2. FROM

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

This subpoena requires you to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated books, documents (as
defined in Rule 3.34(b)), or tangible things - or to pemit inspection of premises - at the date and time specified
in ltem 5, at the request of Counsel listed in Item 9, in the praoceeding described in item 6.

3. PLACE OF PRODUCTION OR INSPECTION

Gregory S. C. Huffman
Thompson & Knight LLP

1700 Pacific Ave., Suite 3300
Dallas, TX 75201

4. MATERIAL WiLL BE PRODUCED TO
Gregory S. €. Huffman

5. DATE AND TIME OF PRODUCTION OR INSPECTION
January 2, 2004

8. SUBJECT OF PROCEEDING

In the Matter of North Texas Specialty Physicians, Docket No. 9312

7. MATERIAL TO BE PRODUCED

See Attached

8. ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE
The Honorable D. Michae! Chappell

Federal Trade Commission
Washington, D€ 20580

9. COUNSEL REQUESTING SUBPOENA
Gregory 5. C., Huffman
Thompson & Knight LLP
1700 Pacific Ave., Suite 3300
Dallas, TX 75201

D&fé%f """~ | SECRETARY'S SIGNATURE
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GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

TE e e . -~ TAPPEARANCE

L ,T]'T&délkve& of this syBfigeng o you by any method
.. ~plesérieq by the Copssian's Rules of Practice is
. grige and maySohjéct you to a penalty

ropeegd b law {6F faifureto comply.

.,

S .
NS
~MOTION TO LIMIT OR QUASH

The Commission's Rules of Practice require that any
motion to limit or quash this subpoena be filed within
the earlier of 10 days after service or the time for
compliance. The original and ten copies of the petition
must be filed with the Se:cretary of the Federal Trade
Commission, accompanied by an affidavit of service of
the document upon counsel listed in Item 9, and upon
all other parties presceribad by the Rules of Practice.

TRAVEL EXPENSES

The Commission's Rules of Practice require that fees and
mileage be paid by the party that requested your
appearance. You should present your claim to counssl
listed in Item 9 for payment. if you are permanently or
temporarily living somewhere other than the address on
this subpoena and it would require excessive travel for
you to appear, you must get prior approval from counsel
listed in item 9,

This subpoena does nat require approval by OMB under
the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1920,

FTC Form 70-B (rev. 1/97)
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SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO UNITED HEALTHCARE OF TEXAS, INC.
IN RE NORTH TEXAS SPECIALTY PHYSICIANS
DOCKET NO. 9312

DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS

A. The rerms “document” and “documents” are used in their customary broad sense and
include, without being limited to, writings, drawing, graphs, charts, handwritten notes,
film, photographs, audio and video recordings and any such representations stored on a
computer, a computer disk, CD-ROM, magnetic or electronic tape, or any other means of
elecuronic srorage, and other data compilations from which information can be obtained
in machine-readable form (translated, if necessary, into reasonably usable form). See
16 C.F.R. § 3.34(b).

B. “NTSP" refers to Respondent North Texas Specialty Physicians, its employees,
Tepresentatives, attorneys, agencs, participating physicians, directors, officers, and
consulrants.

C. “United Healthcare of Texas, Inc.,” “you,” or “your” refers to United Healthcare of Texas,
Inc., its parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, employees, agents, and Tepresentatives.

D. “Physician provider” shall mean a physician, enrity comprised of physicians, or entity
contracting on behalf of physicians and/or entities comprised of physicians.

E. Unless otherwise indicated, the time period for which documents should be produced is
January 1, 1998 through the present.

F. The singular includes the plural and vice versa; the terms “and” and “or” shall be both
conjunctive and disjunctive; and the past tense includes the present tense and vice versa.

Documents should be produced both in hard copy and electronic form where available,

Each document and thing produced pursuant to this subpoena duces recum shall be
produced as ir is kept in the usual course of business (for example, in the file folder or
binder in which such documents were located when the subpoena duces tecum was served)
or shall be organized and labeled ro correspond to the caregories in this subpoena duces
tecum.

L If you withhold material responsive to this subpoena duces tecum pursuant to a claim of
privilege, or another similar claim, you shall submir, together with such claim, a schedule
of the items withheld which states individually as to each such item the type, title, specific
subject matter, and date of the item; the names, addresses, positions, and organizations of
all authors and recipients of the item; and the specific grounds for claiming thar the item
is privileged. See 16 C.F.R. § 3.38A(a).

J. Responsive documents shall be sent to: Gregory S. C. Huffman, Thompson & Knight
L.L.P., 1700 Pacific Ave,, Suite 3300, Dallas, Texas 75201,

007155 000034 DALLAS 1678455.1 ‘ -1-
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SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO UNITED HEEALTHCARE OF TEXAS, INC.
IN RE NORTH TEXAS SPECIALTY PHYSICIANG
DOCKETNC. 9312

You are encouraged to confer with counsel for NTSP o work out any potenrial problemns
so as to avoid unnecessary delay and burden.

DUCES TEcUM

All documents previously produced or otherwise sent to the Federal Trade Commission
concerning your business reladonships with healthcare providers in the State of Texas.

All documents previously produced or otherwise sent to the Office of the Atrorney General
of the State of Texas concerning business relationships with healthcare providers in the State
of Texas, including specifically but without limitation the documents provided in response to
the Written Norice of Inrent to Inspect, Examine and Copy Corporate Documents served in
or abour March 2002 (a sample of such Writren Notice is attached hereto as Appendix A).
[At your option, check registers as described in Class 6 of Exchibit C need nor be produced].
Such documents should be provided in electronic form only.

Documents for the time period January 1, 2000 to June 30, 2002 described in Exhibits A
through C of the above-referenced Written Notica of Intent to Inspect, Examine and Capy
Corporate Documents to the extent such documents are nor produced in response to
Request No. 2 above. [At your option, check registers as described in Class 6 of Exhibit C
need not be produced]. Such documents should be provided in electronic form only.

All internal and external correspondence, memoranda, and messages concerning or relating
to NTSP.

All documents comparing the cost or quality of medical service provided by any physician
provider listed on Appendix B and any other physician providers.

Documents sufficient to show the rate (as expressed in terms of a % of RBRVS or otherwise)
paid to each physician provider by you, the period for which that rate was paid, whether the
rare was for a risk or non-risk contract, whether the rate was for 2 HMO or PPO or other
contract, who the contracting parties were for the contract setting the rate, and which
physicians were covered by such contract.

All documents concerning or relating to comparisons of the cost of physician services,
“hospital care, pharmacy cost, or cost of health insurance in the State of Texas.

Documents sufficient to show your policies, rules, and access standards establishing the
geographic areas to be serviced by physician providers in the State of Texas.

A sample contract used for each contracting entity involving more than 75 physicians in the
Counties of Dallas and/or Tarrant and any amendments, revisions, or replacements thereof,

007155 000034 DALLAS 1676455.1 -2
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SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM TO UNTTED HEALTHCARE OF TEXAS, INC,
IN RE NORTH TEXAS SPECIALTY PHYSICLIANS
DocxeTNo. 9312

Certificate of Service
1, Gregory D. Binns, hereby cerrify on December 18", 2003, I caused a copy of the attached
subpoena duces tecum to be served upon the following by certified mail:

Mit. Michael Bloom

Senior Counsel to the Northeast Region
Federal Trade Commission

One Bowling Green, Suite 318

New York NY 10004

Unired Healthcare of Texas, Inc.

c/o C T Corporation System (Registered Agent)
350 N. St. Paul Street

Dallas, TX 75201

=L
Gregory D. Binns
007155 000034 DALL AS 1680571.1
007155 000034 DALLAS 1678455.1 -3-
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B > OFFIGEOT THE ATTORNEY GINSRAL * ETATE OF TEXAL
JOBNCORNYN

L

March 29, 2002

Attention Corporate Officers and Agents

United Healtheare of Texas, Inc.

CT Corporation System

350 North St Panl Sueet )
Dallgs, TX 75201 VIA Certified Mail #7001 2510 0007 0331 9113

Re:  Written Notice of Intent to Inspect, Examine and Copy Corporate Documents
pursuant to Art, 1302-5.02 of the Texas Miscellaneous Carporation Laws Act.
Health Maintenance Organization Documents

Atrention Corporate Officets and Agents of United Healtheare of Texas, Inc.:

Please be advised that the Texas Attormney General has authorized and directed that the
Consumer ProtectionDivision (rereafier, “CED") inspect, examine and review certain books,
records and other doctments related 1o United Healthcare of Texas, Inc.'s (bereafier,
“United”) Texas Health Maintenance Organization (heyeafter, “HIMO™) business. pursuant to
the Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Laws Act, TEx. REV. Civ. STAT. ANN. Art. 1302-5.0] -
Art. 1302-5.06. Therefore, CPD requests that United produce the books, records and other
documents as specified in the attached Exhibits A, B and C within the next thirty days, If
United chooses to coaperate with this request, these documents should be produced 1o
Assistant Attorney General Robert C, Robinson, IT, Consumer Protection Divisian, 300
‘West 15™ Street, Suite 900, Austin, Texas 78701,

As an alternative to producing the electronic fils copies of the raquested docurnents
accoyding o the terms specified in the attached Exinbits A, B and C, please notify CPD of
the dates United will make its electronic databases and systems that contain the requested
electronic data accessible to CPD for inspection, examination end copying at United's
offices. If United chooses this option, such elcctronic databases and systems shall be made
available for inspertion, examination end copying beginning no later thar Apxil 29, 2002,
and continwing wntl such inspection, examination and copying is complete. Upan amival ar”
United’s offices, the Attorney General's assistants and representatives shall present United
with & letter confirming that each s anthorized 1o conduct the inspection, examination and
copying of United's books, records and other documents.

The documents specified in the attached Exhibits A, B and C are requested as part of the
Attorney General’s investigation of possible violations of Section 17.46() of the Deceptive
Trade Practices Act and Section 3 of the Unfair Competition and Unfair Practicas Act, Texas
Insurance Code, Article 2121, The documents as specified in the attached Exhibits A, Band *
C may show or tend to show that United has been or is engaged in acts or conduct in

violation of its charter rights and privileges, or in violation of the laws of this Stare.

ToIT OryiaE Ban ¥asel, AUITIN, TIXATIIITI-S54E TRL! (53214612700 W WWW.OAGATATETX 08
At Bypod bmylgymartz Oppertnniy Evplyvar » Friesed sn Razeeled bepor .
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CPD shall return al] documents, and all copies of documents, produced by United pursuadt to
this inspection and examination prior to closing this investigation. In the meantime, it is
CPD’s position that such documents are not subject to production pursuant to an opsn
records request 2s provided by Art. 1302-5.04 of the Texas Miscellaneons Corporation Laws
Act. CPD is not requesting confidential patisnt information.

If it is easier to do S0, the documents rasponsive to this request 1o inspect, examine, and copy
documents may be prodnced in coordination with the documents to be produced in response
1o the separate request issued today for records related to United’s PPO business in Texas.

Please be advised that any corporation that fails or refuses to permit the Attomey General oy
his authorized assistants or representatives to examine or to take copies of any of its said
books, records or other documents pursuant to-the Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Laws
Act, "shall thereby forfeit its right to do business in this State; and its pexmit or charter shall
be canceled or forfeited.” Art. 1302-5.05.A. Additionally, any officer or agent of a ]
corporation who fails or refuses to permit the Attorney Gemeral or his amthorized assistants or
representatives to examine or to take copies of any of its books, xecords or other documsnts
pursuant to the Texas Miscellaneous Corporation Laws Act, "shall be fined not less than one
hundred dollars nor more than one thousand dollars, and be imprisoned in jail not less than
thirty nor more than ope hundred days, Each day of such failure or refusal is a separate
offense." Art, 1302-5.058.

Should you have any questions regarding production af the requested documents accarding
to the terms specified in the anached Exhibits A, B and C, ar any interast in discussing this
matter further, please contact me at (512) 475-4360, or by fax at (512) 322-0578. CPD is
confident that United shares the Attomey General's interest and desire to resolve these
allegations of improper payment practices, and we look forward to United’s cooperation in
this endeavor.

Yours wuly,

G

Robert C. Robinson, I
Assistant Attorney General
© o S Consumer Protection Divisian

o Ms. Deb Goldstein and Mr, Grag Coleman
WeIL, GOTSHAL & MaNGes L.L.P.
Via Facstmile: (214) 746-7777 and (512) 391-6879
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O DOCIIV ATI SHIBIT A t
DEFINITIONS

“Company,” “you,” “your,” “your company,” and “United” mean each entity to which this
Exarnination is addressed; ifs parent;-and its merged, consolidated, or acquired predecessors,
divisions, subsidiaries, and/or affiliates. These terms include any and al) directars, officers,
equity owners, representatives, employees, agents, attomeys, successors, and assigns of
United. The terms also incinde all natural persons and entities acting or purporting to act for
the above, and any predecessar, successar, affiliate, subsidiary or wholly owned or controlled
entity. The phtase will be constroed to intlude present and former officers, agents,
employees, directors, representatives, consultants, axomeys, associates and all other persons
acting or purporting to act for you, and any predecessor, successar, affiliate, or subsidiary
catity or persan(s), ncluding all present and former officers, agents, employess and all other
persons exercising or putparting o exercise discretion, to make policy, ar to make decisions.

Withow limiting the tenm, a document is deemed to be within your “control” if you have
ownership, passession, or custody of the document, or superiar right to secure the documest
or copy of it framt-any person or public or private entity having physical possession of it

“Any™ means all.

“Claim” means eny health cere provider's request for payment for emergency, medical or
other health care services, supplies or equipment furnished to an individual patient recipient.
Faor the purposes of the six classes of electronic documen claim racoris requestes by Exhibit
C, a single claim may have multiple suffixes ang claim lines, and cach claim line will have
multiple fields.

“CMS™ means Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services.

“Code” means any code, cdit and/or modifier used 1o specify, to stquence or otherwise to
describe the services for which the provider is submitting a claim..

“Correct Coding Initiative,” “CCI" and *NCC]" mean the CMS National Correct Coding
Initiative system for codes, edits and modifiers that is utilized nationally by all Medicare
carriers in the claims processing systems those Medicare carriers use to determine payments
to providers. CMS developed CCI to promote national correct coding methodologies and
to contro] improper coding Jeading 10 inappropriate payment in Medicare Part B elaims.
CMS developed its CCl coding policies based on coding conventions such as tHose defined
in the American Medical Association’s (hereafter, “AMA™) Current Procedural Terminology
(“CPT™) manual, national and local policies and edite, eoding guidelines developed by
national societies, analysis of standard medical and surgical practices and a xeview of current
coding practices.

“CPT" code or “CPT code™ means any Qurrent Procedural Techmology cade as defined and
licensed by the AMA. .

3~
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“Database” - In addifion to its common meaning, the term “database” shall include the timms
“data bank" and shall mean and refer to any strucured collection of electronic informarion
orgenized into records or rows, together with all other electronic data whose presence is
needed 1o anzlyze end view the information in afull and meaningful way. This Examination
requests elecoronic data documenrarion fom your databases and/or data banks that contain
information about any and all claims by aoy heaith care provider that provides services to
your members with all codes and/or programming instructions and other materials necessary
to understand and use such electronic datz documentation.

“Document” micans and includes all written, printed, recorded.and gmplnc matier, yegardless
of authorship, both ariginals snd nonidentical copies, in your possession, custody or control,
or known by you to exist, despite whether the writing was intended for or transmitred
intemally by you, oy intended for or transmitted 10 any other person or entity. It includes
communications in wards, symbols, pictures, photographs, sounds, films and tapes, and
information stored in or accessible through computer or other informetion storage and .

retrieval systems, with all codes and/or programming instructions and other materials
necessary to understand amd use sueh systems.

"Examination” means this Written Notice of Intent (end Request) to Inspect. Examine and
Copy Corporate Documents gs issued at the direction of the Attorney General pursuant to
Art. 1302-5.02 of the Texas Miscellaneons Corporation Laws Act

“HCPCS”™ means the Health Care Finance Administration (CMS) Common Procedure
Coding System for all providers and medical suppliers to code professional services,
procedures and supplies for Medicare,

“Health Cure Provider” inclndes any “physician™ as thar term is defined by Tex. INs, CODE
Axt. 20A.02(r) and also includes any “provider” as that rerm is defined by TEX. INS. CODE
Art. 20A.02(%) s amended by der of 1997, 75th Leg,, ch, 1026, Sec. 3.

“ICD-9-CM™ and “ICD9" code(s) means any Imernatione! Classification of Diseases-9th
revision-Clinical Modification cades used to classify morbidity and mortality information
as such codes arc approved by the American Hospital Association (“AHA"), CMS and the
National Center for Health Care Statistics,

“Industry Standard Code(s)” include eny and all codes, code edits, modifiers or coding
methods as such codes and cading methnds are specifically defined, required end/or used for
claim submission camplianee with the NCCI, Terms and definitions applicable to the NCCI
standards may be found at www.hcfe/medieam/necihoml. For coding methods not required
by CCI ar HCPCS, the term “industry stendard code(s)™ includes, but is not limited to, any
and all CPT codes as licensed by the AMA, any and all ICD-9-CM codes &s revised and
approved by the AHA, CMS, and the National Center for Health Care Stanstics.

“Mermber” includes any patient as the teon padent is defined at TEX. INs CODE Art. 21.58A,
Sectrion 2(16) fWest 2002).

.

12/22/03 MON 13:18 [TX/RX NO 65181

T-813  P.12/61 F-514



16=€¢mua  1L:i4apm From=UNI TEDHEALTH GROUP-LEGAL 8528361745 T-813 P.13/81 F-§i4

N $
. “PC Compatible” means an American Standard Code for Informaz}on Imterchange ( hereafter,
H "ASCH")I;:xt fle that can be read by 8 personal computer. Data in each PC compatible file
should be fixed width. . .

18. “Provider" for purposes of this Examination shall have the same meaning as “Health Care
Provider” unless otbsrwise specified,

A ing to,” ding,” and “connected to™ mean and inclur}e any and a‘ll
- ymmtes't:n m mannar’ 'mor form is relevant in any way to the iubjcat matter in
guestion, including without limitation all informavion thar, directly or muuectly, contains,
records, reflects, summerizes, ecvaluates, refers 1o, indicates, comments on, or_dxs:u&scs the
subjcct'mattu. or that in sny mauner states the background of, or wasd;ebas:smw‘gr:the
bases for, or that record, evaluate, camment on, Telate 1o or were refmed 10, re_h?d on,
wilized, gensrated, transmitted or received in acriving &t your conchusion(s), apinian(s),
estimare(s), position(s), decision(s), belief{s) or assertion(s) conceming the subject maner .
in gquestion.
20. “Service(s)" means any emergency, medical or other health care services, procedures,

supplics or equipment for which United receives a claim for payment from a health care

provider. -

.5
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D - ATION, EX : t
INSTRUCTIONS

A. Unless otherwise stated, the scope of this Examination relates to all specified books, data
docurnents and records existing ar created at any time during the period from January 1,
2000, to March 28, 2002, related to United"s Texas HMO business.

B. The electronic data doctment files requested in Exhibit C should be produced in PC

. Compatible format. Each file shonld be an ASCI text file that can be read by a personal
computer, Data in each file should be fixed width. A sample demonstrating how the

requested elecronic files shall appear when printed in table format is anached as Exhibit D.

C.  Any failure to provide document(s) is not acceptable if you can obtain the document(s) from
persons reasonably available to you or under your contral.

D. In any situation in which it is not clear in which capacity you are responding, you are to .
designate all relevant capacities.

E. Tt is your responsibility to clearly designate which, if any, of the documents contain trade
secrets according™o § 17.61(f) of the TeX. Bus. & Com. CODE.

F. Documents produced shall be complete and not redacted, submitted as originally prepared
or as found in your files. You may submit legible copics instead of original documents,

G. Documents should be numbered consecutively and marked with a United or personal
jdentification and a unique cansecutive.control number.

H. All documents and/or other data compilations that selate to the subject matter of this
Examination shall be preserved and any ongoing process of document destruction involviog
soch documents and/or data compilations should cease. '

L Documents responsive to this Examination shall be produced according 1o the instructians
and definitions outlined in Exhibit A, Exhibit B and Exhibit C.

J. This Examination does not request data for Medicare plans. However, the meaning of each
term used within Exhibits A, B, and C is to be defined and interpreted consistent with that
term's definition as wsed by CMS, HCPCS end the NCCI. If you believe there is a direct
contradiction between the meaning specifically given 1o a term within Exhibit A, B or C and
the mesning given to that ter s the tevm is used by CMS and the NCCI, please notify CFD
of such belief end proceed with the undsrstnding that the definition within Exhibit A, B,
and C shall cantrol.

Y. 1fUnited uses a broader definition of any term(s) defined or used within this Examination,
please provide a written copy of the broader definition of such term(s).

-6.
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L. If United does not have the requested information for  specific field of any partiSular
individual record stored within any database, and/or United does not otherwise have access
to the requested informarion for any specific Beld of the given record, please leave the field
blank to indicate that United does not have access to the requested information for the
specific field of the particular record produced,

M.  As used herein, the words “and” and “or* should be construed either cogjunctively or
disjunctively as required by the context w bring within the scope of the request any answer,
response or decument that might be desmed outside #ts scope by another construetion.

N. All currency amounts requested for electronic data document data elements (fields) should
be represented as dollars and cents with 2 plus o minus sign 1o indicate positive or negative
‘amounts. The plus or mmus sign should be the first character in the currency field.
Currency amounts should ‘be presented with the next eight digits for doliars and the last wo
for cents (without a decimal point), -

0. All dates for electronic data document data elements (fields) should be mmddyyyy format
withnut spaces, n_n' or u/n'

P, All text for slectranic data document data elements (fields) should be left justified withour
leading spaces. .

Q. Place of service, type of service, CPT codes, and ICD9 codes should be industry standard
codes. If industty standard codes are not used (e.g., if there is no applicable industry
standard code as the term industry code is defined in Exhibit A), or if the codes vsed include
any variations from industry stendard codes, an electronic file containing any and all
applicable lookup tables and/or dats dictionaries should be provided. The electronic file
conwining the lookup table(s) and/or data dictionary(ies) shall include each non-industry
standard code, each vatistion from an industry stendard code and a description of each. The
layomt of the lookup table(s) and/or data dictionary(ies) should also be provided in the
elecronic data file. As with all electronic fle copies requested by this Examination, this
electronic file should be PC Campatible. Each file should be an ASCH text file that cmm be
read by g personal computer. Data im the electronic data file should be fixed width
delimited, The electronic daia file produced in response to this Instruction Q should be
labeled as responsive to Instuction Q.
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N ON
Electronic Data Documents

€PD requests the six classes of electronic data documents as follows:

Class 1 Eligibflity

Class 2 Authorizations/Referrals
Class 3 Claims/Encounters
Clags 4 Capitation

Class 5 Adjudication Rules
Class § Check Register

12/2